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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty-Fifth (25th) Annual General Meeting of the Members
of M/s Hi-Klass Trading & Investment Limited will be held on Friday,31"t August,2018, at
the registered Office of the Company situated at Office No 15, 2nd Floor, Plot No 24,
Rehman Building Veer Nariman Road, Hutatma Chowk, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, at 09.00

a.m. to transact with or without modification(s) the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the company for the year ended
31"t March 2018, and report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Dtector in place of Shri. Vimal Shantilal Patangia Director Identification No-
00166331, who refues by rotation and being eligiblg offered Ior re-appointment.

3. To appoint auditor of the Company to hold olfice from the conclusion of this AGM until
the conclusion of the next AGM and fix their remuneration and to pass the following
resolution thereof.

To consider and, if thought fit to pass. with or without modificatiory the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant of provision of section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 6 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014., pursuant to recommendation of
the Audit Committee M/s R.R. Gawande & Co. Chartered Accountants, (FRN 123762W) be
and are hereby re-appointment as Auditors of the Company to hold the office from this
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion o{ the next Annual General Meeting and fix
their remuneration as may be determined by the Audit Committee in consultation with the
Auditors.

Place: Mumbai
Daie: 02.08.2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Suresh T. Jain
Managing Director
Director Identification No - 0.1142300
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ANNEXURE TO ITEM NO 2 OF THE NOTICE

Name of the Directoi

Relationship with other dt;tor ind;
Date of

Chartered Accountants

No of Equity sha-es hEid-ii tiet6iGni
Directorship in other Gaian public t iilitea

other lndian Public Limited Comparues as on
31s'March, 2018

None

Notes:

1' The Statement pursuant to section 102 (1) of the Compan.ies Act,2013 with respect to thespecial business set out in the Notice is annexed.

2, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENT'TLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE IN THE MEETING ]NSTEAD OF
HIMSELF/ HERSELF, AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

3. The instrument appointing the prory, ciuly completed, must be deposited at the
companyrs registered office not less than 4g hours before the commencement of the meeting.
A prory form for the AGM is enclosed.

4 corporate members intending to send the'' authorised representatives to attend the
Meeting are requested to send to the Company a c€rtified copy of Ure Board Resolution
authorising their repr€sentative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. .-

5. In terrns of the provisions of Section i52 of the Companies Act, Zelg,Mr, Vimal ShantilalPatangia (DIN 00166331). Director, retires by rotation ai the Meetrng and being erigible,offers himself for reappointment. The Board of Directors of the Company commend hisreappointment, Brief resume of Mr._Vimal Shantilal patangia who is proposed to be re-appointed, nature of his expertise in specific functio.ul ur"us].,a_e. of compani.s in whichhe holds directorships and memberships/chairmanships of Board Comrnitteegshareholding and relationships between directors inter_se as per Listing Rules) is arnexedhereto.

6 During the pedod begintng 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of themeeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, u *u^u", wourd be entitled to
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inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the Compaay, provided
that not less than three days of notice in writing is given to the Company.

7. Members/proxies should bring the duly filled Attendance slip enclosed herewith to
attedd the meetins.

8. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial persormel and. their shareholding
mahtained under section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by
the members at the AGM.

9. The Register of contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained
under section 189 of the companies Act, 201i, will be available for inspection by the
members at the AGM.

10. The Register of Members and share Transfer Books will remain closed from Friday, z4t
August, 2018 to Friday, 31.'t August, 2018 (both days inclusive).

11. Members are requested to address all correspondence, including dividend matters, to the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, Purva Share Registary (ndia) private Lirnited, Unit
No. t Shiv Shakti tndustriat Estate, J.P. Boricha Marg, Opp. Kasturba Hospital Lane, Lower
Parel (East), Mumbai 400 011 Conract person: Mr. V. B. Shah, Tel No: 022-iJl0L0271-

12. The Company is concerned about the environment and utilizes nafural resources in a
sustainable way. We request you to update your email acldress with your Depository
Participant to enable us to send you the communications via email.

13. Members holding shares in lhe same name under di{ferent Ledger Folios are requested
to apply for consolidaiion of such Foli.os and send the relevant share certiJicates to Registrar
and Transfer Agent of the Company for doing their needful.

14. Members are requested io notify change in address, if any, immediately to Regiskar and
Transfer Agent of the Company quoting their folio numbers.

't5. Copies of the Annual Report,20t8 are being sent by electronic mode only to all the
members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depository
Participant(s) for communication purposes unless any mernber has requelted for a hard
copy of the same' For members who have not registered their email addresses, physical
copies of the Annual Report 2018 are being sent by the permitted mode.

16. The Notice of the 25tt'AGMand instructions for e-voting, along with the Attendance slip
and Proxy Form, is being sent by electronic mode to all members whose email addresses are
registered with the Company/Depository participant(s) unless a member has requested for
a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email addresses,
physical copies of the aforesaid documents are being sent by the permitted mode.

17. Members may also note that the Notice of the 25th AGM and the Armuar Repori- 201g
will be available at the registered office of the company. The physical copies of the aforesaid
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documents will also be available at the Company's registered office for inspeciion during
normal business hours on working days. Members who require communication in physical
form in addition to e communicatiory or have any other queries, may write to us at:
st jain999@gmail.com.

18. Additional information pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the stock
exchanges in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the AGM are
fumished and forms a part of the Notice, The Directors have fumished the requisite
consents /declarations for their appointment/reappointment.

19. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of the
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market, Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their pAN to their
Depository Participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form shall submit their pAN
details to the Company.

20. All documents referred to in the Noiice will be available for inspection at the Company,s
registered office during normal business hours on working days up to the date of the AGM.

21. Voting through electronic means Pursuant to the provisions of Section 10g of ttre
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administuation) Rules 2014, the company is offering e-voting {acility to its members in
respect of the businesses to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be
begins on Tuesday, 281h August, 2018 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Thursday, 30tt' August, 2018 at
5.00 pm For this purpose the company has signed an agreement with Central Depository
Services (India) Ltd ("CDSL") for facilitating e-voting.

Please read the instructions given overleaf before exercising the vote. This communication
forms an integral part of the notice dated 2.a August, 2018 for the Annual General Meeting.

22. Instructions for E-voting in the Annual General Meeting In case of members receiving e-
mail:
(i) Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com
(ii) Click on "Shareholders" tab.
(iii) Now. select the "COMPANY NAME" viz Hi-Klass Trading arld Investment Ltd. ftom
the drop down menu and click on "SUBMIT"
(iv) Now Enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Membbrs holding shares in Physical Eo-rm should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company.
(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Logrn.
(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com
and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
(vii) If you are a first time user follow ihe steps given below:

For Mernbers holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
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(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT. tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will ihen reach directly the Company selection
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'password
creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the
new password field. Kindly note that this password is.to be also used by the demat holders
for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided
that company opts for e-voting through GDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting
,on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Comirany Name> viz Hi-Klass Trading and
Investment Ltd. on which you choose to vote.

(xii) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION. and against the same
the option "YES/No" for voting. select the option yES or No as desired. The option yES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option No implies that you dissent io the
Iiesolution.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax
Deparhnent (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as
physical shareholders)

Merr'.bers who have not updated thei PAN with the
Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name
and 8 digits of the Sequence nurnber which is mentioned in address
Label alfixed on Annual Report, in the PAN field.
'In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter ihe applicable
number of 0's before the number after the first fia/o characters of the
name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with
sequence

number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN 6eld
DOB Enter the Date of Bir& as recorded in your demat account or in the

company records for the said demat account or folio in
dd/ mm/y1ryy format.

Dividend
Bank

Details

Enter ihe Dividend Bank Details as recotded in your demat account
or in the company records for the said demat account or folio.

Please enter ihe DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login.
If the details are not recorded with the depository or company please
enter the member id / folio humber in the Dividend Bank details
field
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(xiii) Click on the "RESoLUTIONS FILE LINK. if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

(xiv) After selbcing the resolution you have decided to vote orL click on,,sUBMIT,,. A
conJirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ,,OK,,, 

else to
change your vote, click on ,,CANCEL,, 

and accordingly mojify your vote.

(xv) once you 'CONFIRM' your vote on the resolution, you wi.lt not be allowed to modily
your vote.

(xvi) You can also take out pdnt of the voting done by you by clicking on ,,Click here to
prini" opiion on the Voting page.

1^u'4 o o"-u, account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID
and the image verification code and click on Forgot password & enter the details as
prompted by the system.

'Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Ind.ividuals, HUF, NRI erc.) are required to log on
to https;//www.evotingindia.co.in and register themselves as Corporate.

'They should submit a scanned copy of the Registrafion Form bearing the stamp and sign of
the entity to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

' After receiving the login details they have to create a user who would be able to link the
account(s) which they wish to vote on.

' The list of accounts shourd be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval
of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

' They should upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and power of Attorney (pOA)
which they have issued in favour of the custodiary if any, in pDF format in the system for
the scrutinizer to verifli the same.

In case of members receiving the physical copy:

(A) Please follow all steps from sl. no. (i) to sl. no. (xvii) above to cast vote.

(B) The voting period begins on Tuesdap 2gth August, 201g at 9.OO a.m. and ends on
Thursday, 30m August, 2018 at 05.00 pm IST. During ihis period shareholders, of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in demateriarized form, as on the cut-off
date (record date) of Friday, 24tr' August, 201g may cast their vote electronically.

The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
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(C) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at wrvw.evotingindia.co.in under
help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

22.'Ti! voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date (record date) ol Frid.ay,24*
August,2018.

23. The notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose names appear
in the register of members/depositories as at closing hours of business, on Thusda, 2nd

August, 2018.

24. The shareholders shall have one vote per equiiy share held by them as on the cut-off date
(record date) of Friday, 24th Augusi, 2018. The facility of e-voting would be provided once
for every folio/client ID, irrespective of the number of joini holders.

25. MAYUR MORE (Membership No ACS g124g Cp No. 13104) proprietor of MAyUR
MORE & ASSOCIATES., a practicing Company Secretary, has been appointed as a
Scrutinizer for the e-voting process.

26. The scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the
conclusion of the e-voting period u.block the votes in the presence of at least two (2)
witnesses not in the employment of the company and make a scrutinizer's Report of the
votes cast in favour or againsf if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

27. The Results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The Results declared
along with the scrutinizer's Report shall be available at the registered office of the companp
and on the website of CDSL within two (2) days of passing of the resolutions at the AGM of
the Company and comrnurricated to the Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited and pune
Stock Exchange Limited.

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial personnel of the
Company /their relatives is, in any way, concemed or interested, financially or otherwise, in
these resolutions.
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

To,

The Members,. ..

Hi-Klass Tracling and Investment Limited
Mumbai

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their
business and operations o{ the Company ird the
March 31, 2018.

1. FINANCTAL RESULTSF

Twenty-Fi (24th) Anrual Report on the
accounts for the Financial year ended

Your directo/s not yet recommended dividend for the year under review.
3. RESERVES:-

During the year under revie' Rs' 3'1r' Lakhs amount has been transferred to reserves.
4. BRIEF DESCRIPTTON OF THE COMPANYS WORKTNG DURTNG THE yEARr
During the period under reviey
resistered&corporateorrice"*LJ":ff :Hf."#Jff tiiJil:;:Tf il":T;*;:prospective vision & objeci for future gro_arth of the como*rr. 

- -

5. cHANGE IN THE NATURE oF BUsINESS, TF ANY:-
There are no changes in the nai:: 

"lr:t": during the Financiat year 2017 _ 18 and iromthe end of Financiat year 31st March, 2013 till the Ja-te"o;;;";;r,
6. INFoRMATTON ON MATERTAL CHANGES,AND COMMITMENTST
There are no material *""r* 

^::O 
commitments affecting the financial positions of thecompany during period under revrew.

7. DETATLS or. srcNrFrcAy 
_1N" MATERTAL oRDERS pAssED By rHbREGULATORS OR COURTS OR'TRIBUNAL;i'U;Oi*I 

'"E 
GOING CONCERNSTATUSAND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN TUT;R;:-

2016-17 (Rs in Likfrs

Profit 7 lrosslbeEElil
Provision ro. GilutlE-DG.ea

Earlier Tax pt;\,fi;;;Gtr"nbiA
Profit / lloss) ffi[Eon
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During the period under review, your company doesrft receive any such kind of order from
the regulator or Courts or Tribunals

8. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
I4/ITH ITEFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS}

During the period under review, your company has adequate Intemal Control.

9, DETAILS OF PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION SUBSIDIARY/IQINT
VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIEST

During the period under review, your Cornpany doesrlt have any Subsidiary, Associates

and Joint Venture.

10, DEPOSITS:-

The Company did not hold any pirblic deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it
accepted any public deposits during the year under review.

11. STATUTORY AUDITORST

The board of directors of the company proposed the re-appointmenis of M/s. R. R.

Gawande & Co, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the Company from
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of next Annual General

Meeting of dre Company.

You are requesied to re-appoint the statutory auditors for the financial year ended 31,r

Marctr, 2019 i.e. FY 2018-19.

12. AUDITORS'REPORTT

Your Directors are pleased to inform you that the Statutory Auditors of the Company have

not made any adverse or qualified remarks in their audit report.

13. SHARE CAPITALT

(A) Issue of Equity Shares with Differential Rights: The Company has not issued any equity
shares with differential rights during the Financial Year 2017-18.

(B) Issue of Sweat Equity Shares: The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares

during the Financial Year 2017-18

(C) Issue of Employee Stock Options: The Company has not issued any Employee Stock. 
Options during the Financial Year 2017-18,

14. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURNT

The exhact of the annual retum in Form No MGT - 9 shall form part of ihe Board's reporr is
attached as armexure-Ill.

15, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGOT
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Since your company was not engaged in any Manufacturing activities duiing the year under
lev-t:w 

the details regarding conservation of energy technJlogy absorption are reported tobe NIL as mentioned in Armexure_I

16, CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):-

During the year under review, provision of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Rule hasnot applicable to your company.

17. DIRECTORS:

A) Changes in Directors and Key Managerial personnel

The details about the changes in the directors or key managerial personnel by way ofappomtment/ re - designation/ resignatiory death or disqualificatiory variation mude orwithdrawn etc. In the case of a public company, the namu of the dir".to, who is/are liable toretire by rotation and also whether he / they offers/ offerfor re_ appointme";_ 
-' - *"*-

ln terms of the provisions of section 152 0f the Companies Act,2o13,lv1r. virnal shantilalPatangia (Director Identification No - 00166331), Director, retires by rotation at the Meetingand being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

Mr. Pravin Kesharchand Chopda DIN_ 0064g495 tender his resignation from the post ofExecutive Director due pre-occupation

B) Declaration by an Inelependent Director (s) and Re- Appointment, If Any:

Dudng the year no such appointment of Independent Director (s), The appointment of Ms.Anupama Nathaial Shah, Mr. prakash Shree Gupta, Mr. pravin prakash Rane, Non_Executive Independent Directors, were formalised by the Boara of Directors at its meetingheld on March 30, 2015.

All the Independent Directors have given the decrarations that they meet the criteria forIndependence as laid down under section 149(6) of the companies Act, 2013 and Regulation25 0f the securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligation and DiscrosureRequirements) Regulations, 201 5

An independent director sha' hold office for a term up to five consecutrve years on theBoard of a Company, but shall be eligibre for reappointment for next five years on passing ofa special resolution by the Company and discGure of such appointment in the Board,srePort.

C) Board Anrcual Eaaluation:

The Board shall include a statement indicating the rr,amer in which formal arnualevaluation has been made by the Board of its owi performance and that of its committees
and individual directors.

18. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORST

No. of Board Meetings held dudng ihe year along.with the dates of the meeting: During theyear six board meetings were held on: 2"d Ma, t0l7 , 27th h)ne, 2O17 , 7th August, 2017 , 31"1August, 2012 9th OctobeL Z01Z,zgthJ;uruary, 2018.
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x9. AUDIT COMMITTEET

The composition of an Audit Committee to be disclosed and where the Board had accePted

recomrnendation of the Audit Committee for re-appointment and/or ratification of M/s R.

n. Ciwanae & Co., Chartered Accountants from this Annual General Meeting until
conclusion of next Armual General Meeting, the same shall be disclosed along with the

reasons therefore.

20. DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES:-

The details of establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report

genuine concems to be disclosed.

2L. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEET

During the period under review, your company has set up Nomination Remuneration

Committee pursuant to provision 179 of the Comphnies Act, 2013 set out in annexure of this

rePorr.

22. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANfiES OR IIWESTMENTS UNDER SECTION
186r

During the period under review, your company does not have any transaction relating to
loans, guarantee or investments under section 186.

23. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS V!'ITH RELATED
PARTIES:

During the period under review, your company does not have any Contract or arrangement

referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Cornpanies Act 2013 including certain

arm:s length transactions.

24. MANAGERTAL REMUNERATION:.

A) Details of the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee's

remuneration and other details as required pursuant to Rule 5(1) bf the Companies

(Appointment and Rernuneration of Managerial Persormel) Iiules, 2014.

During the period under review, not applicable to your company

B) Details of the every employee of the Company as required pursuant to 5 (2) of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Persormel) Rules, 2014.

' During the period under review, No employee - (s) fall under Rule 5(2) the Companies

(Appointmmt and Remuneration of Managerial Persormel) Rules, 2014.

C) Any director who is in receipt of any commission {rom the company and who is a
Managing Direcior or Whole-time Director of the Company shall receive any remuneration

or commission from any Holding Company or Subsidiary Company of such Company

subject to its disclosure by the Company in the Boards Report.
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During the period under review, No Director (s) of the Company except Mr. Suresh T. Jair;Managing Director of the Company drawing remureration.

25, SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPoRTT

During the pdriod under review, secretarial Audit Report given by Mayur More proprietor
of M/s MAYUR MORE & ASSOCIATES, Company i".rul.ius shalt be annexed with the
report as Armexure-Il

26. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATET

During the period under review your company has taken corporate governance certificate
from the Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of conditions of corporate govemance as
stipulated as per the sEBI (Listing obrigation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation
(referred as "Listing Rules,,) shall be arurexed with the report.

27. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

During the period under review, your company has taken appropriate risk management
policy for future growth & prospective.

28, DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTT

The Directors' Responsib ity statement referred to ir clause (c) of sub-section (3) of secrion
134 of the Companies Act, 2013, shall state that_

(a) in ihe preparation of the armual accounts, the applicable accounting standar-ds had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and appried them consistently a.,.,d
made judgments and estimates that are reasonablq and p*a"niro as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affaas of the cornpany at the end of the financial year and of the profit
And loss of the company for that period;

(c) The directors had taken proper and surficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing and deiecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the alnual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) The directors had laid down intemal financial controls to be followed by the company
andthatsuchinternalfinancialcontro]saIeadequateandwereoperatingeffectively'

(f) The directors had de'ised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were.adequate and operating effectively.

29, PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEEST

Details of Remuneration as per Companies (Appointment and remuneration of Managerial
Remuneration) Rules 2014 are as follows:
l The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the company for the financial year: NA
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2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief

Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year: NA
3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:

NA
4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: Nil
5, The explanation on the relationship between average increase in temuneration and

company performance: NA
6. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Pelsonnel against the

performance of the company: NA
7. Variations in the market capitalisation of the company, Price eamings ratio as at the

closing date oI the current financial year and previous financial year and percentage increase

over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the company in comParison to the

rate at which the company came out with the last public offer in case of listed companies,

and in case of unlisted companies, the variations in the net worth of the comPany as at the

close of the current financial year ancl previous financial year: NA
B. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile

increase in the managerial remuneration and iustification thereof and point out if there are

any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: NA
9. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors:

NA
10. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who
are not directors but receive remuneration in excess of ihe highesi paid director during ihe
year: NA
11. AJfirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company: NA

30. ACKNOIWEDGEMENTST

An acknowledgement to al1 with whose help, cooperation and hard work the Company is

able to achieve the resulls.

Place: Mumbai
Date:02.08.2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Suresh T. Jain
M>neoino T)irertnr_ __' -o'_'o -__--''_
Director Identification No - 01142300
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Industry Sfructure and Developmen*

I:t,O;1fit t::ance companies (NBFCs) have scripted a great success story. Their
:olT,oyn9l.t9 the economy has grown in leaps and bountis from 8.4% in 20e6 to aiove.L4%
in March, 2015.

In terms of financial assets, NBFCs have recorded a hearthy growth-a compound ar*rualgrowth rate (CAGR) of 19% over the past few y"ur" _.o^pri"ii.g 13% of the total credit and
expecfed to reach nea y 18.k by Z01g _19.

With the on-going stress in the public sector banks due to mounting bad debt, iheir appetite
to lend (especially in rurar areas) is only going to deteriorate, The success of NBFCs can beclearly attributed to their better product rine",-rowur cost, wider and eflective reach, stronerisk management capabiliries to check and control bad iebts, and t",* ;;;;""d1;;;?
their customer segments. Not onty have they shpwn succes; in their traditional bastilns
(passenger and commercial vehicle finance) but they have also managed to build substantiar
::::rs' 

,-d:,. management (AUM) in the personal loan and housing finance sector whichnave r'een the bread and butter or retail banks. Going forward, the ritent credit demand ofan emerging Lrdia will allow NBFCs to fill the gap, eJpecially where traditional banks havebeen wary to sewe. Additionally, improvinf -u..o""or,J.rri. conditions, higher creditpenefratiort increased consumption and disruptive digital trends w r arl0w NB--FC,' creditto_grow at a healthy rate of 7-10% (real growth rateJ, over the next five years. Clearly,
NBFCs are here to stay.

Capital Market:,

I:rdian investors get a handsome 1Z-1g.5% retum frorn stocks during the financial yearending March 2017, as the Narendra Modi governrnent aggressively puriued crucial reforms
such as the Goods and services Tax and after an emphatil**i" i" tr."'uttu, p;J"rh ;b.tio*"
The 3'-share benchmark sensex ended the financial year up 'r.6.9% whirethe broader Niftv
Ii-",y1 ]9 ?% 

as the reforms push botstered investors faith in the gro*th rtory ,i a"i"7,rnlro largest economy.

Investors are betting on a further rise in the share prices in the coming days as GST is rolled
out, Indian companies post better profits and as the economic growtn picts up.

"In terms of^market strategy, 44'/" 
,ot 

inv€stors think stock picking remains the best strategyand another 35% think this is a bull.market and 
-fhey 

are buyers Jf equities,,, it said, addiig2/3 of investors surveyed expect India to outperform other riralor emeiging markets.

1::1'."^,::f lT: :?,::lalg surged in the past three months with the Sensex rising 11%Irom tne end ot t)ecember. The Up elec_tion. results showing BJI/s overwhelming winin thecountry's biggest state and a positivri signal to Modis second term at the Cenhecompounded investor confidence.

"Indian financial markets have had- a great ride in first quarter of calendar year 2012. This

lltl:_t^,T:t_.t:lally high. volatitif and the relatei hit caused by the unexpectedqemonetrsatlon anlounced in early November and the sfrong dollar raliy,,,CLSA said in anote.
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Global developments especially in the United States and a general improvement in
economic outlook also aided the bull run,

The-US benchmarks Dow Jones Industrial Average is up 17% while Nasdaq is up 21% in the
la'$tT2 months, UKs FTSE-100 is up 19% despite ihe Br;xit wonies.

in Asi4 the Japan's Nikkei is wp 13.5% on extension of Bank of Japan's monetary stimulus
and a pickup in growth but Shanghai stock index was up just 7"/. as the economy continues
to sloiv.

Outlook. Risk and Concern:-

India will remain the fastest-growing major economy in the world.

That's the Narendra Modi govemmen/s outlook for Asia's third'largest economy, despite
the shock of demonetisation and a range of mc€rtainties, both at home and abroad.

India's real GDP growth will remain behveen 6.75% anLd 7.5y" in the 2017-2018 financial
year, the governmeni said in its Economic Survey, an annual document that deciphers the
state of the economy.

"Even under this forecast tndia would remain the fastest $owing maior economy in the
world" the suwey said, although the L:rternational Monetary Fund earlier this year
estimated that China was growing faster than lndia.

In the curent financial year, real GDP is projected to grow at about 7o/", the survey added,
significantly lower than the 7.6% growth the economy registered in 2015-2016.

"Macroeconomic stability is easy to overlook and become complacent abi:ut " he added.

The coming financial year won't be particularly easy either. The economy will continue to
deal with the effects of demonetisation while also contending with a range of global
uncertainties. The biggest intemational risks to the lndian economy that Subramanian listed
out include rising oil prices, cade-related tensions between major economies, and growing
PrwrrLuuru>uL

Opportunity and Threats:

Opporfunif.vr

i. Long-term econornic outlook positive, will lead to oppo unity for capital market
services

ii. Growing Financial Services industry's share of wallet for dispos:ible income
iii. Regulatory reforms would aid greater partiiipation by all class of investors
iv. Leveraging technology td enable best practices and procesbes

v. Corporate looking at consolidation / acquisitions / restructuring opens out
opportunities for the corporate adyisory business

Threats:-

i. Execution risk
ii. Short term economic slowdown impacting investor sentiments and business

acti'/ities
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iii. Slowdown in global liquidity flows
iv. Increased intensity of competition from local and global players
v. Market trends making other assets relatively attractive as investment avenues

Operationatai-rd Financial performance:-

The summarized performance of Hi-Klass Trading & Investment Limited was as under:

Human Resources and Industrial Relations:_

The Company has appropriate policies in place for recruitment, training, skill development
and compensation for its workmen, employees and staff. The Company makes an effort to
keep on building good rerationship with its associates, competitors and all the stakeholders
in the various industries wherein it operates.

Risk Managemenh-

company has formulated a risk management framework which lays the procedure for risk
assessment and mitigation. Company manages various risks like financial risk, operational
risk, r,arketing risk, extemal risk and regulatory risks associated with the mortgage
business The criticar risks which can significantry impact profitability and financial streigih
are credit rislt interest rate risk and liquidity risk.

Internal Conhol System:-

The Company has very effective control system covering both accounting and
administrative controls. The intemal audit carries out audit tJsts and report on non _
compliance / weaknesses iI any, through intemal audit reports. These reports are reviewed
by the Audit Committee of the Board.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 02.08.2018

For, HiKlass Ttading and Investment Limited

Suresh T. Jain
Managing Director
Director Identification No - 01142300
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ANNEXURE TO pTRECTORS'REpORT gN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corp"grate Govemance is a set of standards which aims to improve the Company,s image,
efficiency and effectiveness. It is the road map, which guides and directs the Board of
Directors of the company to govem the affairs of the company in a manner most beneficial
to all the Shareholders, the Creditors, the Govemment and the Society at large.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") on 2"d September, 2015, issued SEBI
(Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to
as the "Listing Regulations") with an aim to consolidate and streamline the provisions of the
Listing Agreernents for different segments of capital markets to ensure better enforceability.
The Listing Regulations were made effective from 1"t December, 2015 (effective dat;).
Accordingly, all [sted entities were required to enter into the Uniform Listing Agreement
within 6 (six) months from the effective date. Your Company has accordingly entered into
Listing Agreement with BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited
during the month of February, 2016.

A report on compliance with the implementation of Regulation 34 (3) read with Chapter IV
and Schedule V of Listing Regulations is given below:

1. Company's philosophy on code of corporate Governance: The Company believes in the
practice of good Corporate Govemance. A continuous process of delegation of powers
commensurate e,/ith accountability coupled with trust, faith and transparency has been
embedded in the day to day functioning. The company wiII endeavour to improve on these
aspects on an ongoing basis.

2, Board of Directors: Size of the Board; The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 6
Directols, Compositiory category and thet attendance at the Board meetings during the
year and at the last Annual General Meeting as also the number of other Directorship/
Membership of Committees are as follows:

Name of the

Director
Caiegory of
Directorship

No. of
Board
Meetin

attende

d

Attenda
nce at
last

AGM

No. of other
companies
excluding
Pvt. Ltd.
Companies
in which
Director

of
Cornnrittees
(other than Hi-
Klass Trading &
Investment
I imi+-n \ ;-

which member

Shri. Suresh

T. Jain

Managing
Director

6 Yes Nit Nil

Shri. Pravin
K. Chopda#

Executive

Director
3 Yes Nil Nit

Shri. Vimal
Shantilal

Patangia

Executive
Director

6 Yes Nil Nil

Ms. Non Executive 6 Yes Nit Nil



Anupama
Nathalal
Shah

Independeni

l\rl

Nit

Shd. J
Prakash

Shree Gupta

Non Executive
Independent

o Yes Nil

Shri. privli-
Prakash

Rane

Non Executive
Independent

o Yes Nil
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# ],k. Praain Kesharchand Chopda ceased to be a Director wef 31.0g.2017
No. of Board Meetings held during the year along with the dates cl# ;,xffi:ll,::,x# ;;ffi;r ;:iH ;i,:i;TT:fff ffi: ii:

;;1":H:#.T}$"hiplcomminee in other companies (including Hi-Krass rrading and

Directorship

(Narr,e

Companies)

Shri. SureshT

Trading and
Investment Ltd

Hi-Klass
Trading
and

Investment
Ltd

Audit

Siakeholders
Relationship

Member

Member

Shri. Pravin K
Chopda # Trading and

Investment Ltd

Hi-Klass
Trading
and
Invesfment
Ltd

Shri. Vimal
Patangia Trading and

Investment Ltd

HiKlass
Trading
and
Investment
Ltd
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# Mr. Praoin Kesharchand Chopda ceased to be a Director wef 31 08'2017

2.2. Disclosure of relation between directors Intel-se

None of directors of the company are related to each other

2,3. Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors

None of the Non-Executive Dilectols holds any shares or convertible instruments

2.4, Inf ormation.place before board

The Board has comPlete access to all inJormation of the Company, inciuding 1olgr-"lia' the

information to be liaced before the Board of Directors as required under the Listing

Regulations. The important decisions taken at the Board/Board corimittee Meetings are

communicated to the concerned Departments/Divisions.

2.5. Evaluation of Baord

Shah Trading and

lnvestrnent Ltd
Trading
and
Investment

Ltd

Nomination
and

Remuneration

Stakeholders

Relationship

Member

Member

5 Shri. Prakash

Gupta

Hi-Klass

Trading and

Investment Ltd

H!Klass
Trading
and
Investment

Ltd

Audit

Nomination
and

Remuneration

Stakeholde-t

Relationship

Chairman

Chairman

Chairman

6 Shri. Pravin
Prakash Rane

Hi-KIass
Trading and

Investment Ltd

Hi-Klass

I rao.ng
and
Investment

Ltd

Audit

Nomination
and
Remuneration

Stakeholder

Relationship

Member

Member

Member
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In terms of section 178(2) of the companies Act,201.z read with Rules framed thereunder
and Part D of schedule II of Listing Regurations, the Nomination & Remuneration
committee have evaruated the performance of each Director, Board and various committees
for the financial year ended 31st MarctL 201g. The evaluation or the performance of each
Director was'bhsed on level of participation in meetings, unclerstanding the roles &
responsibilities, understanding the strategic issues and challenges in the Company. The
evaluation of the Performance of Board was based on board compositioo experience &
competencies, understanding of business and competitive 

"rr,riro.,_"r,,, 
quality of

discussions at the board meetings, time speni by the board on the Company,, .lor,g i".^
goals and skategies. The Independent Directors at their meeting arso discussed the
performance of the Non-Executive Directors including the Chairman of the Board. Based on
the above broad parameters, the effectiveness of the Board and its commiitees were found
satisfactory.

2.6. Responsibilities of the Board:

The Board discharges the duties, responsibilities as required under the appricable statute (s)
including the Companies Acl 1956, Companies act iOfS Guidelines issued by SEBI and
other regularities bodies from time to time. The Board of Directors ensures that other
responsibilities do not have any material impact on their responsibilities as Directors of the
Company.

2.6. Independent Directors

Your. Company had at its Board Meeting. (AGM) held on 30th Marclg 2015 has appointedMs Anupama shah, Mr. prakash shre" iupt", vir. ptu"rt liur.urr, nane as an I"d#;;;Di1:"1": ,? hold office for 5 (five) 
"or,r"",rti.,,u 

yuu.. p*r'*t io Section 149 and 152 readwith Schedule IV and other applicable provislorn of tf,e Companies Act, 2013.

Independent Directors have submitted a declaration that ihey meet the cdteria of
fiigfqi*g as per the provisiors of Companies Act, 2013 anJ Regulation 16(1)(b) of theListing Regulations and none of the Indepen-dent Directors is hoidinj directorships in morethan 7 listed companies. Comoany has issued the formal tetter of appointment to lheIndependent Directors in the manner provided under the Compantes Ac, 2013.

2,7. Meeting of Independent Direcors

The Independent Directors of the Company meet at least once rn every financial yearwithout the presence of Executive Di.ectors or management f".ro*ut. All Independent
Dfuectors strive to be present at such meetings. O"rLrg ti" fir,;;.ial year ended 31st Marctr,2018, 1 (one) meeting was held on 29th 1aauai,, ZOfS.

2,8. Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

Regulaiion 25(\ of t].e Libting Regulatioirs mandates the Company to familiarize theIndependent Directors with the C--ompany, ti"i. ,oi"r, ,ightr, responsibilities in theCompany, nature of the indusrTy in wfrich the Co*p".,y' op"'*i"s, business model of theCompany, etc. through various piogrammes.

The Company through its Managing Director/ yfhole time Director/ Senior ManagerialP.ersonnel conduct programmes/preientations periodicaty to familiarize the IndependentDirectors with the strategy, oustness and operations of the Companv. Such



HI-KLASS TRADING AND INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2Ot7.T8
programmes/presentations will provide an opportunity to the Independent Directors to
interact with the senior leadership team of the company and help them to understancl the
Company's strategy, business model, operations, services and product offerings,
organization structure, finances, sales and marketing, human resources, iechnology, quality
of p?oducts, facilities and risk management and such other areas as may arise from time to
time.

The above programme also includes the familiarization on statutory compliances as a Board
member including their roles, rights and responsibilities. The Compa.y also circulates news
and articles related to the industry from time to time and provide specific regulatory
updates

2.9, Role of Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors plays an important role & participate in all the deliberation of
the Board and contribute to the decision making process wirh their knowredge and
expertise in the areas of Accounts, Financial, Law & other professional areas.

3. Committee of Board

3.1. Audit Committee:

The brief description of terms of references of Audit Committee is as under: -

) Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient
and credible.

Recommending the appointment/re-appointment of extemal and internal auditors,
tax auditors, cost auditors, fixation of statutory audit fees, intemal audit fees and tax
audit fees and a.lso approval for payment of any other services.

Review with management/ the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board.

Review quaiterly un-audited/audited financial results/quarterly revievj reports.

Review the financial statements in particular of the investments made by the unlisted
subsidiary companies.

Review with management/ performance of extemal and internal auditors. and
adequacy of intemal control system. :

Reviewing the adequacy of intemal audit function, if any, including the structure of
the intemal audit depaitmbnt, staffing and seniority of the offi;ial heading the
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of intemal audit.

Discussions with statutory auditors before the audit conunence about nature and
scope of audit as well as have post audit discussions to ascertain any area of concern.

Approve the appointrnent of Chief Financial Officer.
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) To rook into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,debenture holders, shareholders and creditors, if any.

! Review of the use/application of money raised through public/Rights/preferential
Issue, if eny.

F Approval or any subsequent modification(s) of transactions of the Company withrelated parties, if any.

> ne1ilw and monitor auditors independence and performance and effectiveness ofauqlt process.

! Scruliny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

F Review the Company,s financial and Risk Management policy.

) Discussions with internal auditors of any significant findings and foltow up thereon;

F The composition of the Audit Committee is in line with the proyision cf section 177of the Companies Act, 2O1g and Regulation 1g of Listing l(egulations. The membersof the Audit Committee_are finaniially Iit"rutu uJ h'uve reqursite experience infinancial 
,management. The Board has constitutei u., auai, Committee. shri.

+ka+ S:lueeCqpt4 is a Chairman of the committee with ahri. **rh i"*.nHijain, Mr. Pravin Kesharchand Chopda Ms. Anupama w"ttuta Snan, Shri. prakash
Shree Gupta, Shri. pravin prakash hane ,r" *""irb"rr. The Co*pany Su..utu.y u"t"as Secretary to the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Cornmitiee are as outlined in the Companies Act, 2013
and the Listing Agreement (s).

During the year under review, a total of four meetings of the Audii Committee were held,
on 2"d May, 2017,7t Augastt 2017,9.h October, 2017 atrd 296 January, 2018.

The Composition of Audit cornmittee a:rd attendance of each committee members is ;is
under:-

Mr. Suresh
Tarachand Jain
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Rane Executive,

Independent

# Mr . Praain Kesharchand Chopda ceased to be a member wef 31 .08 .2017

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Cornpany has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Directors. The

nomenclature of Remuneration Committee of Board was changed to Nomination and

Remuneration Committee and the roles were widened to comply with the provisions of

Companies Act, 2013 and the new amended Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement effective

from 1'r October, 2014 at the Board Meeting held on 14* August, 20i4 relevant provisions of

regulation 19 of ihe securities and Exchange of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Members of Nomination and Remureration Committee

are Mr. Pravin Prakash Rane, Ms. Anupama Nathalal Shah, Chairman of this Committee is

Mr. Prakash Shree Gupta

The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of

meetings attended by the members of ihe Nomination and Remuneration Committee are

siven below:-

Committee Member Designation Category No of Meeting

Mr. Prakash Shree

Gupta

Chairman Non- Executive, 4

Ms. Anupama
Nathalal Shah

Member Non- Executive,

Independent

4

Mr. Pravin Prakash

Rane

Member Non- Executive, 4

The broad terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Cominittee are as under:

To approve the annual remuneration plan of the Company;

To approve the remuneration arld commission/incentive temuneration payable to the

Managing Director and Whole Tirne Director for each financial year;

To approve the remuneration and armual performance bonus payable to the Chief Financial

Officer and the Executive Vice Presidents of the Company for each financial year;

Such other matters as the Board may from time to time request the Remuneration

Committee to examine and recommend/approve.

5, Stakeholde/s Relationship Committee:

The Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Directors to look into the

redressal of complaints of Investors such as transfer or credit of shares, non-receipt of

dividend/notices/armual reports, etc. The nomenclature of Shareholders and Investor

Grievance Committee of Board was changed to Stakeholders Relationship Comrnittee and
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the roles haye been widened to get in line with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
the new amended Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement effective from lst ectober, 2014. Andtplevant provisions of regulation Z0 the Secudties and Exchange of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The members of the Committee are Mr. prakash Shree Gupta, Chairman, Mr. Suresh T. JairyMs. Anupama Nathalal Shah, Mr. pravin prakash Rane. Five meetings of the corrunittee
were held during the year on 2nd May,2017, Zrh August, 2017,9t October,20.17 and 29th
January,2018.

6. Compliance Officer: Ms. Mardeep Kaur [Company Secretary and Compliance Officer]

7. General Body Meetings; The last three Annual General Meetings were held as under:

Financial Year Date Time Location

2074-1.5 30.09.2015 10.00 am 12/8, Haji Habib Briilding, 2"d Floor,
Dr. B Ambedkar Road, Opp Fire
Brigade, Dadar East, Mumbai- 400
0L4

201,5-16 30.09.2016 09.00 am 72/8, Haji Habib Building, 2'a Ffoor,
Dr. B Arnbedkar Road, Opp Fire
Brigade, Dadar East, Mumbai- 400
014

201,6-17 28.08.20L7 09:00 am 'r2-8, }taji Habib Building, 2"a Floor,
Dr. B Ambedkar Road, Opp. Fire
Brigade, Dadar East, Mumbai- 400
014

8. Disclosures: There were no transactions of material nature with its promoters. TheDirectors or the Management, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc. that may have potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large

9. Means of Communicalion:

i. Quarterly results displayed on company's website .

ii. Newspapers wherein results normally published in Newspapers in One English alongwith regional language of the state.
iii. Any website, where di6played: yes dGplayed on company,s website
iv. \44rether it also displays official news releases; and
v. The presentations made to instihttional inyestors or to the analysts: Not applicable

10. General Shareholder Information:

i AGM: Friday, 31,r August, 2018 at 09.00 a.m. Office No 15, 2nd Floor, plot No 24, Rehman
Building, Veer Nariman Road, Hutatma Chowlg Fort, Mumbai - 400 001., lrdia
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ii. Financial year: 2017-18

iii. Dafe of Book closttre 24 / O8/ 2018 to 37 / 08 / 2078 (boih days inclusive)

iv. Dividend Payment Date: - NA

v. Listing on Stock Exchanges: Unlisted

vi. Stock Code: - NA

vii. Market Price Data: - Nil

viii. Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL index

etc. : NA

ix, Registrar and Transfer Agents: Purva Share Registary flndia) Private Limited, unit No. 9,

Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, J.P. Boricha Marg; Opp. Kasturba Hospital Lane, Lower Parel

(Easi), Mumbai- 400 011 Contact Person: Mr. V. B' Shat:,,TelNo:022-2i0!077L

x. Share Transfer System: your board of director lodge share transfer during the financial

year as per provision of Companies Act' 2013

xi. Distribution of shareholding:

Distribution oi Shareholding as on 31.03.2018

No. of Equity
Shares Held

No. of
Shareholders

No. of Shares %

Up to 5000 10 38.18 11,85,850 38.18

5001 to 10000

10001 to 20000 3 1,.45 45,100 r.4)

20001 to 30000

30001 to 40000

40001 to 50000

50001 to 100000 ' 1 2.27 70,500 2.77

1,00.001 and

.Above

273 JJ.f,I 18,04,750 58.10

Total 287 100 31,06,2OO 100

Shareholding Pattern (as on 31.03.2018)



Category
-------;--T-----

A. fromoter___;__;-=-'---
r. t-romoter

--___i-=-=-i-

lndlan l.romoter_----=--.-----.---_-

No of shares % of holding

8,17,500 26.32
rerson AcBng ln Concemi;;r _=-_- 0 0

0 0
D. t\on l-romoter

-- 4 r: ;;;-------:=
0 0.. rls.rruuonal lnvestors

irdr tx,s, rlnanclal lnstifutions,
Jnsurance Companies
(Centual/State Govi. Institutions/
Non4ovemment Institutions)

0 0

b. FII----;'-:---
totat

t- orherc
d, rrrvare corporate bodies 11,8t850 38.18

;;-;;
JD.J I

b. Indian public
c. NRI's/OCB's

11,02,850

0
u, Lreaflng Members

-j-.-;-:_:-:-

DUD IOtal
-_-;-_:-:=--=-=--r otal Non_l,romoter holdine--G;aTot"I--------

0 0

10037,06,200

xii. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:
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xiii outstanding GDRs/ADRs/warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date
and likely impact on equity: NA

xiv. Plant Locations: NA

xv. Address for correspondence; Office No 15, 2nd Fioor, plot No 24 Rehman Building VeerNariman Road, Hutatma Chowk, Fort, Mumbai _ 400 001

11. Green Irdtiatives:

Green Initiatives: Recently, The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Govemment of tndia,had issued the following circulars in Green Initiative i.e. Circular Nos. 17/2011 and
18/20L1-, d,ated, Apnl21,,2071- and April 29,2011 respectively, allowrng companies to sendofficial documents to their sharehorders electronically u. pu* o, its Green Initiatives inCorporate Govemance.

Particular No of Shares % of Shares

2'1.33
No of shares held in demat 6,62,500
No of Shares held in phvsical 24,$,7A0 78.67

100
Total 31,,06,200
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Recognizing the spirit of the circular issued by the MCA, we propose to send
notices/ documents (i.e., physical Annual Report of the Company comprising of Balance

Sheet, Profii & Loss Account Directors' Report, Auditors' Report etc.,) to the email address.

In this behalf, we are confident that you would appreciate the "Green Initiative" taken by
N{CA. We solicit your cooperation in helping the Company to implement the e-govemance
initiatives of the Govemment.

Shareholders who have not updated their email ID till date are requested to kindly update
your email address with your depository participant for Demat holding of shares and with
Mr. Suresh Tarachand Jain from'Hi-Klass Trading and Investment Limited' on the email id
st.jain999@gmail,com for physical holding of shares and co-operate with the Company to
implement the Green Initiative of the Govemment in the following format

12. Investor Correspondence:

For transfer / dematerialization o{ shares and any other query rclating to the shares of the
company

Puwa Share Registary (India) Privaie Limited, Unit No. 9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, J.P.
Boricha Marg, Opp. Kasturba Hospital Lane, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai 400 011 Contact
Person: Mr. V. B. Shah, Te! No: 022-3010771

Name of
the
Member

Son of or
Daughter of

Client ID No ot
shares

PANNo Email Address
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Annexure-I:

In terms of section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2019, read with ihe Companies
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rulei 19gg, the Directors
fumish hereirtftlow the required additional information:

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

(a) Energy consewation measures taken - NIL
Nature of your Company,s operations entails a very low level of energy consumption.

(b) Additional investments and proposals if anp being impremented for reduction of
consumption of energy _

NIL

(c) Impact of the measures at (a) and (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and
consequent impact on the cost of production of goods _ NiL

(d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production _ NIL

II. DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WIT1I RESPECT TO TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION ETC.,

I Research and Development::- your Company is predominantly trading in
securities and therefore has not set up a formal
R&D unit.

II TechnologyAbsorption,
Adaptation and lrurovation:

securities and

III. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Eamings in Foreign Exchange
Nil

Foreign Exchange outgo

Your Company is predominantly trading in

therefore not set up a formal R & D unii.
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Annexure-II

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[Pursuant to section 204(1.) of the Companies AcL 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Ranuneration Personnel) Rules, 20141

io,
The Members,

Hi-Klass Trading and Investment Limited
Office No 15, 2nd Floor, Plot No 24,

Rehman Building, Veer Nariman Road,

Hutatma Chowk, Fort,

Mumbai - 400 001

we have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory Plovisions
and the adherence to good corPorate practices by Hi-K1ass Trading And Investment

Limited ("hereinafter called the comPany"). Secretarial Audit was ccnducted in a marmer

that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory

compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the HlKlass Tmding And h'Ivestment Limited books, papers,

minute books, forms and retums filed and other records maintained by the company and

also the information provided by the Cornpany, its officers, agents and authorized

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby rePort that in our

opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31"1

March, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in

the ma]]ner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other

records maintaiaed by HlKlass Trading And Investment Limited ("the Company") for the

financial year ended on 31"r March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and rules made there under;

(iii) Th.e Secudties Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there

under;

(iv) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(r) Foreign Exchange Management Act, "!999 and the rules and regulations made there

under to the exteni of ForeiSn Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and

External Commercial Borrowings- (Not Applicable to this Company Dudng

Audit Period);

(vi) The foltowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Aci')r
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a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

c. The "Si:iurities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosur.e
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not Applicable to this
Company during Audit period);

e' The securities and Exchange Board of India (rssue and Listing of Debi securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not Applicable to this Company during Audit period);

f. The securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Aci and dealing with
clienl;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 (I.{ot Applicable to this Company during Audit period); and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 199g
(Not Applicable to this Company during Audit period);

i. The Securities and Exchange Boatd of lrdia (Deposiiories and Paticipants)
Regulatiory 1996;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957;
The Securities Exchange and Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulation Rules, 2015

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Sesetarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of lndia.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Ahmedabad Stock Exchanee
Ltd and Pune Stock Exchange Limited;

During the pedod under review and the representations and clarification received from the
managemenf we confirm that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, standards, etc. except to the extend mention below:-

1' The Notice for holding Board meeting for approval of Financial results and ihe
Financial results have not been published in Newspapers as required under SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations 2015. 2. Company does
not have Functioning website as required under provisions of- the Regulation 6 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

we further report that compliance of appiicabte financial raws incruding Direct and rndirect
Tax laws (if applicable) by the company has not been review in this Audit since the same
has been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.

We further report that

1.

k.



The Board of Directors of the Company is dtrly constituted with Proper balance of Executive

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and tndependent Directors' The changes in the

composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were

cuni.d o\rfin compliance with the provisions oI the Act'

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings' agenda and

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance' and a system exists Ior

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the

meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting'

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and

recorded as Part of the minutes.

We further rePort that there are adequate systems and Processes in the company

commensurate with the size and oPerations of the company to monitor and ensure

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines'

We further. report that dudng the audit period the had issued 11'00'000 fully paid equity

shares on preferential basis to the non-Promoter'

HI-KLASS TRADING AND INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2077-T8

Place: Mumbai

Date: 01.05.2018

For, Mayur More & Associates

Company Secretaries

Mayur More (ProPrietor)

ACS No. 35249 COP No. 13104
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Annexure 'A'

To,

The Members
M/s HfKlasslrading & Investment Limited
Office No 15, 2nd Floor, plot No 24
Rehman Building Veer Nariman Road,
Hutatma Chowl9 Fori,
Mumbai - 400 001

Our report of even date is to read along with this letter.

1' Maintenance of secretariar record is the responsib ities of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on thede secrJtarial records
based on our audit.' 2. We have followed the audit, practice and processes as were appropdate to obtain
reasonable assurance about cbrrechress of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflect in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practice, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of event! etc.

4. The Compliance of the provision of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the reposiblitiies of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

5' The secretarial Audit report is neither as assurance as to the future viab ity of the
company nor of the efficary or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Compan y .

Place: Mumbai
Date: 01.05.2018

For, Mayur More & Associates
Company Secretaries

Mayur More (Proprieior)
ACS No 35249 CP No. 13104
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CEO and CFO Certification

To,

The Board of Directo$
Hi-Klass Trading and Investment Limited

Mumbai

We Suresh T. Jair; Managing Director, Pravin K Chopda CFO of Hi-Klass Trading and

Investment Limited, to the best oI my knowledge and belief, certify that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement {or the year and that

to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact

or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii) These statements together Present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are

in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations'

(b) To the best of their knowledge arrd belief, no transactions entered into by the company

during the year whicfl are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the company's code of conduct'

(c) We accept responsibility Ior establishing and maintaining intemal controls for financial

reporting und thut th"y have evaluated the effectiveness of intemal control systems of the

**put y pertaining to financial rePorting and'ihey have disclosed to the auditors and th€

Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation oI such intemal controls' iI any' of

which they are alvare and the steps they have taken or proPose io take to rectify these

deficiencies.

(d) They have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

(i) There has not been a change in intemal control over {inancial rePorting during the yeal

(ii) There has not been changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same

have been disclosed in the notes !o the financial stdtements; and

(iii) We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement

therein of the management or'any employee having a significant role in the Company's

intemal control system over financial reporiing

sd/ -
Pravin K. Chopda

CFO
Place: Mumbai
Date:31.05.2018

sd/-
Suresh T. Jain
Managing Director
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To,

The Members
Hi-Klass Trading and Investment Limited
Mumbai

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate covemance by HlKlassTrading and Investment at*1".1,(* Company,), for,rl"'y"", 
""0"d 

31,r Marctr,2018, asprovision of regulation 15 (2) of rhe STyiti;: *j n*rl*i"-n."rd of India (SEBI) (Lisiing

fl:lTHf. 
rtsclosure Requirement) Regutation, 20ir-ro1-riJp"r,oa ,"t Aprir, 2017 to Jl"r

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Govemance is the responsibility of themanagement. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereoladopted by the company for ensuring the compiiance of the conoitions of the corporateGovemance. It is neither an audi
the company. 

t nor an expression of opinion on the financial statemints of

In our opinion and to the best of
us by the Directors urrd ,h" -*o* 

information and according to the explanations given to

H"""T*$';ru;#JT:x::'xil::;'Jiillj.'Til'T#:L:,".T:J'1":J:
we state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of thec.ompany-nor the efficiency or effectirrene"s with wirch-th" **Jg"-"", n"s conducted theaffairs of the Comparry.

Place; Mumbai
Date:02.08.2018

For, R. R. Gawande & Co
Chartered Accountants
Ritesh Gawande (proprietor)
F R No 123762W
Mernbership No 114553

J i"*, ,r ,-arii ;; li.,r ,vOPY
Fcr i.'i";,rriill rn:,;:;i6 [ l;,]T5$i::iljiT l:..

0r;ie,c10il,



FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTMCT OFANNUAL RETURN

As on tinancialyoar 
'ndsd 

on 31 03 2018

pursuant to section 92 {3)of th6 companios Act,20l3 and rut612(1) oftho company (Managoment & Administration) Rules, 2014

HUTATI4A CHOWK, FORT, MU[4BAI. 4OOOO1

L irousrnnl esrerE,l p BoRlcHA MARG' oPP MSTURBA HosPlrAL

t-owen peRel eesr, i/uMBAl-400011 CoNTACT NO' 022'23010771

Address & contact details of the

10 o/o or mote oflhe the company shall be slated)
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2, Noi.lnstitutlons

a) Eodies Corp.

D Indian '11,85,850 '11,85,850 59.11% 1750C 11,68,350 11,85,850 38.180n 0.00%

i)overseas 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

b) Individuals

i)lndividual

sharehotders h"blding

nominal share capital

upto Rs. 'l lakh

2,850 2,850 0.14% 42,850 42,850 1.38vo '1403.510/o

ii) Individual

shareholdeF holding

nominalsharc capital in

excess of Rs 1 lakh

0.000,{ 645000 4,15,000 u.130/0 0.00%

c) otheF (specify)

Non Resident lndians 0.00% 0.000,6 0.00%

overseas Corporat€

Bodies

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

:o.eign Nationals 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Cleadng Members 0.00% 0.00% 0,000/0

Irusts 0,00% 0,00% 0.000/0

Foreign Bodies. D R 0.00% 0.00% 0.000/0

Slb.total (BX2):. 11,88,700 11,88,700 59.250/0 6,62,500 16,26,200 22,88,700 73.68% 92.544/0

TotalPublic {8) 11,88,700 11,88,700 59.25o/o 6,62,500 16,26,200 22,88,700 73,680/" s2.54%

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDtu &
A0R3

0.00% 0.007o

Grand Total (A+B+C) 20,06,200 20,06,200 '100.00% 6,62,500 24,43,700 31,06,200 100.00% 92.541t

SN Shareholde/s Name ShaEholding at lhe beginning 0f the

year

Shareholding at lhe end of the year Yo change in

shareholding

d,Jdng the year
No. of

Shares

o/o of lolal
Shares of lhe

company

o/o ot
Shares

Pledged/

encumbere

d Io total

No. of
Shares

% of total

Shares ofthe
c0mpany

% of Sha@s

Pledged i
encumbered

lo tolal
shares

ST JAIN HUF
2,21,30l. 4.40Yt 2,21304 7.12"1

0.00% 0.00%

2 PRAVIN K CIIOPUA 5,51,100 5,51,100 17.7 1vo

VIMAL PATANGIA 2t 2C 0.

SURESH TJAIN 25,100 25,'t0c

8,17 40.7501 8,17 26. 0.00%



SN Padiculals 0ate Reason Shareholding at the beginning of the
year

Cumulative Shareholding dldng the yeai

No. of shares o/o of total

shares

No. otshares o/o ol total

shares
I | ,JArN fiut- .. 

' '..:: :qt the beginn)ng of the year 2,21,300 11.030/"

000%

2,21,300 7.124n
unanges ounng tisyear

0.00%

0.0c 0.00%
0. 0.00At the end oflhe year

2,21,300 11.03'/" 2,21,300 7.121o

2 IPMVTN K CHoPDA 

-Al the beginning of the year
5,51,100 27.470/a 5,51,100 17.74ya

unanges ounng the year
0.000/a 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%
At lhe end of the year

5,5'1,'100 27.470/. 5,51,100 17.74%

:3 'A IANGIA

At the beginning of lhe year 20,000 1.000/o 20,000 0.64%
Changes during the year

0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%
At lhe end ol the year

20,000 1.00,4 20,000 0.64%

At the beginning of the year 25,100 1.250,1 25,100 0.01%
Changes dudng lbe year

0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.000/o

0.00% 0.00%
At lhe end ofthe year

25,100 1.250/. 25,100 0.81%



3ha-iililiiis Pattern of top ten s

et lhan Di ectats. PJ949!ej-9ry!9!9ll!12!!!!i:!
Shareholding at the beginni

year

rg of the
-iGutalwe 

Shareholdlng ouring the year

SN For each of the ToP 10

shareholde6

Date Reason

No. ofshares % oJ total

sharcs

No. of shafes % of tolal

shares

:::il =i---:-l

-.. 
-.:

-'l

Aithe beginning ol the Year
2,27.640 11.34"/t

0.00% 0.00%
lhanges dudng the Year

Atlhe end ol the Year
2,21,600 11.34% 2,27,640 7.33Yt

-T-
I

s.37% 1,88,000 6.05%
At the beginning ot the Year

0.00% 0.00%
Changes during the Yeaf

At the end ot theYeaf 1,88,000 9.37"/o 1,88,000 6.05%

I

I lAt ^e besinnins orihe rar I I | "*'*"1 -::-l I ----l

i[ll's'si'ilrth @I lAllhe end ol lhe Year | | | ' "" """ I

l lAth" b.gt.:i.g 
"fi

I lAr Ihe end of the year I I I """"'" 1 '

I lAtrhe besinni.s oithe rar I I I "'"'"""1 ---'-l I -.---l

I

l lAlrhe end of the Year l l l ' 
*" """ 1

t_ lA,,^. bE'".t.g "t --f---0io%-1i llil'n"'l'lln'nlL"' I I I r,o,,il 
-'- "'

I lAtthe end ol the year | | | "'" """ | 

-
I

| lAtth. 
b.gi".l.g.

r lcnanges dJnnE ih! year I I | ------l ---'r _-:+----=--;t
I lat rhe end oi lhe Year | | I "'"'""" I

r't
I lAr 

lhe begi|^4'ng olthe Year I II lil"n""iln"!li" l- I I r::i:ri l '-"'' 'o*i----:r*iI lal Ire end of t\e vear I I I '"" """ I

I lAt're ksinnins 0r the vear I I I """"1 -- 'l I ----l
I lq:nr$l"ll+9T3r I I I iiEi.l """"r C--- 056%l
I lAllhe erd ofthe Year | | | " '""" I

I lA he besinnins orthe yea. I | | 'r""1 ;;i.;l ------1---
I lcia"g,srri^r:he'i:a, I I I ,.,,1 

-'-'r l--- 0r3E
I la.rhe end oi the veai | | | -'"""1
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CEO and CFO Certification

To,

The Board of Directors
Hi-Klass Trading and Investrnent Limited
Mumbai

We, Suresh T. Jain, Managing Director, Pravin K. Chopda, CFO of HlKlass Trading and
Investment Limited, to the best of my knowledge and beliet certify that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that
to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company,s affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) To the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the company's code of conduct.

(c) We accept responsibiiity for establishing and mainiaining intemal iontrols for financial
leporting and that they have evaluated the effectiveness of intemal control systems of the
company pertaining to financial reporting and they have disclosed to the auditors and the
Audit Commitbee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such intemal controlq if any, of
which riey are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

(d) They have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

(i) There has not been a change in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) There has not been changes in accounting policies during the year and that the samb
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) We are not aware of any instance during the year cf significant fraud with involvement
therein of the management or any emp-loyee having a significant role in the Company,s
intemal control system over financial repoiting

sd/- sd/-
. Place: Mumbai Suresh T. Jain Pravin K. Chopda

Daie: 31.05.2018 Managing Director CFO
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lo,
The Members

HlKlass Trading and Investment Limited

Mumbai

We have examined the comphance of conditions of Corporate Govemance by Hi-Klass

Trading and Investment Limiied (the Company'), for the year ended 31't March' 2018' as

prorri"ilon of regulation 15 (2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing

bUtgutior, *ablsclosure Requiremenq Regulatio;, 2015 for the period 1"t April' 20U to 31"t

March, 2018.

ihe compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the

management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof

aaoptea by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate

Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of

the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us by the Directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with

the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing

Agreement.

We state that such cornpliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the managemmt has conducted the

affairs of the CompanY.

Place: Mumbai
Date:02.08.2018

For, R. R. Gawande & Co

Chartered Accountants

Ritesh Gawande (ProPrietor)

F R No 123762W

MembershiP No 114553

' I t-.'r,FY

lf :1llsT:.r-gllT 1.\ ". .



I
RRGAWANDE&CO.
cHARTERED ACCouwrRNrs

._ 
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Mobite No 98214 6 n 70, 93214 61170 iet. N o.022 2876 9653

INDEPENDENT ATIDITOR'S REPORT

The Members,
lWs, Hi-klass Trading And Inyestmenrs Limited
Mum bai.

Report on the Financial Statements

y:^Y:.:"*Tj,the.ac,companying financiat statements of lr,t/s. Hi_Klass TradingAno Invesrments Lrmlred which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3l March 201g, th!statement of Profit and Loss and cash Frow state-ent ioi'ttre fiar trren ended, and asummary ofsignificant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub_section5 of Section 134 of the Companies Act,2013 1,tfre alt;j- wrtn respect to thepreparation ofthese financial statements that give a true and fair view ofthe financialposition, financial performance and cash flois of the Cornp*v in accordance withrhe.accounting principles generally accepted in tnaia,- inituilng the AccountinfStandards specified under Section 133 of the a"t, 'r"ud-*itt 
Rule 7 of theCompanies(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This respcnsibility also incluOes maintenance ofadequate..accounting records in accordance with tie pr"ri.i""r- 
"i ,i," 

'a"ii",
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing unJ O.t""tlng frauds andother irregularities; selection and application of upp.opilui"' accounting policies;making judgments and estimates thit *" ,"u.onuble 'and 

prudent; uia'A".igr,implementation and maintenance oJ adequate i"t"*"i n""*iii controls, that .wereoperating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accountln!records. relevant^to the preparation and presentation of tire financial slatements thatglve a true and fair view and are free fiom material misstatement, whether due tofraud or error,

Auditor,s Responsibilify

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on ouraudit-

We have raken in[o account rhe provisions of rhe Acl the accounting and auOitingslandards and matters which are required to be includei in the auOit report under theprovisions of the Act and the Rul;s.fiiade there under. W" 
"onor"t"a 

our audit inaccordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under sub_section 10 of Sectioir143 of the Act. Those Standards ,equire thit we corpfy *iif, 
"tf,Lf 

requirements andplan and perform rhe audit to obrain reasonable u*r;";.; ;il;;;ether the financialstatements are free from material misstatement.
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RRGAWANDE&CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

F-106, B- Wing, Express zone Mall, opp. Reliance Energy.

Westem Express Highway, Coregaon East, Mumbai - 400 097.

E-Mail:- rrgawandeandco@yahoo co uk & ngawandeandco@hotmail.com
Mobile No 982l4 6li 70. 9J2 l4 6 | 170 Tel. No. 022 2876 9653

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts

and the disclosures in the financial statements' The procedures selected depend on the

auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or enor. In making those risk

assessments, the auditor considers intemal financial control relevant to the Company's

preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expreising an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate intemal

financial iontrols system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of
such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness ofthe accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the

bompany's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufiicient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us, the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting

principles generally accepted in lndia:

i. in the case ofthe balance sheet, ofthe state of affairs ofthe Company as at 31

March 2018;
ii. in the case of the statement of profit and loss, of the profit for the year ended

on that date;

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ('the Order'),
issued by the Central Government of india in exercise of powers confened by
sub-section ll of section 143 of the Act, we enclose in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order.

2. As required by sub-section 3 ofSection 143 oftheAct, we report that::

we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the besl of our
knowledge and beliefwere necessary for the purpose ofour audit;

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so fat"4t3ryears from our examination of those books;

._ r_;(_ \1 LU; r
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b-Marli ngawandeandco@yahoo.co.uk & ngawandeandco@holmail.com
Mobif e No 982 t4 6l 170, 93214 61 170 Tet. N o. OZ2 2{'16 9653

c. the Balance Sheet, Statement of profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the ect, riad with Rule 7 of tG
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; and

e' on th€ basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on
March 31,2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
Directors. are disqualified as on March 3l,20lg from being appointed as a
Director in terms ofsub-section 2 ofSection 164 ofthe Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial conhols over financial
reporting of the Company.and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
we give our separate Repot in _Annexure 2.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors, Report in
accordance with Rule I I ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, ZOt+,in our opinion and to the best of our information and according'to the
explanations given to us:

,': Il:-""-li"t has no pending litigations hence no impact on its financial position
In |ls ltnanctal statements:
2, Provision has been made in the financial statements, as required under the

lflt::bl" ,:y 
": accounring.standards, for material foreseeable lbsses, if any, on

rong-term contracts including derivatives contracts.
3. There llas been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transiened, to the
Investoq Education and protection Fund by the Company.

Place : Mumbai
Date:02.05.2018

For R.R. Gawande & Co.
Chartered Accountants

F.R.N. 123762W

.
'R,R. 

Gawande
(Proprietor)

Membdrship No. 114553
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SIBECIOB,



@l
RRGAWANQE&CO.
CHARTERED ACCQUNTANTS

F- 106, B- Wing, Express Zone Mall, Opp. Reliance Energy.

western Express Highway, Coregaon East, Mumbai - 400 097

E-Mail:- rrgawand€andco@yahoo.co.uk & ngawandeandco@hotmail com

MobileNo 98214 6l170,93214 61170 Tel No.0222816 9653

ANNEXURE TO THE A\JDiTOR'S REPORT

HI-KLASS TRADING & INVESTMENT LIMITED
(Referred to in paragraph 1 ofour report ofeven date)

l.l. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation offixed assets.

1.2. The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management during the

year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

1.3. Not Applicable as there is no immovable property.

2. The management has canied out physical verification of inventory at reasonable

intervals during the year. Tn our opinion and according to the information &
explanation given to us, the procedure of physical verificeition of inventory followed
by the management are, reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the

company and the nature of its business. The Company maintains the proper records of
inventory. No discrepancies were noticed on physical verification of inventory as

compared to the books ol records.

3. The company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured, to or

from the companies. Firms or other parties covered in the Register maintained under

section 189 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

4. ln respect ofloans, investments, guarantees, and security provisions ofsection 185

and 186 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 have been complied.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public to which the directives

issued by the Resei've Bank Of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any

other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under are

applicable.

6. The central govemment has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under

Section 148( l) ofthe Act for any ofthe activities ofthe Company.

7. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is
generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including Income-Tax,

Cess and other Statutory dues with the"ppropriate authorities and there were no such

outstanding dues as at 3lst March, 2018 fcr a period exceeding six months from the

date they become payable.

8. On the basis of information and explanations given to us, the company has not

bonowed any funds from the Banks/ Financial Institutions/Govemment or Debenture

Holders.

. '.f
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9. Moneys has not been raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer(including debt instruments) and term loans,

ll:l".jn. besr of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
grven ro us, no traud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

ll. Managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with therequisite approvals mandated by the provisions ofiection 197 read with Schedule vto rhe Companies Act 2013

12. This is not the Nidhi Company hence hot applicable.

13. All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of Companies Act 2013 where applicable and the details ha"; ;;;;;;"i;#i;
the Financial Statements etc., as requiied by the applicable accounting standards

]l:,Ln. ":Tp*t has made preferential allotment of shares during the year underrevrew and the requirement of section 42 of the Companies Act,2013 have beencomplied l'vith and the amount raised have been used fo, the pu.poses for which the
funds were raised.

I5'The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors orpersons connected with him.

16. The..company is registered as Non Banking Finance Company under R.eserve
Bank oilndia Act, 1934

Place : Mumbai
Date :02.05.2018

For R.R. Gawande &€o,
Chartered Accountants

F.R.N. 123762I[

t,

R,R. Gawande
(Proprietot

Membership No. I l{553
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Refened ro ,in p-arasraph lq"JJj"lflf8fno^?l Stlfl ff"q,iL.?io"r*frqlillfrl
f itH,!i3 illi 

"33?'Jifi., 
"''-' 

8,Yi'! i

Eif"lt,i,""lBiollisltil3TFSlfl'*"93iT8li.%""'J,s"l'?3'i11,]6h"i1",1% xl$i'
We have audirecl the intemal financial controls over financ ial"re,O,ou;l;e fl "j"fitf::
Jift3[ti"f "]ilrY?';'#i'i#i[!l58"l;if""?i"T'f3',1{^J'"ft'rif!!rqr;; 

eibBqii tsl

l5;Jf'x!'sFiil"IjH,"1llti3ti|,io"l],l:ili'itiln'l'"T:3I;3li:?:"?:il"']lfl"r'fi]
mola.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

\\'e bclioe that thc audit evidence \4e havg obtained, i; sufficient and, approprlat^g to

"iiviiJi 
-Udlii ioi our audit opinion on the intemal tinancial controls system over

financial reporting ofthe Company

Meaning oflnternal Financial Controls Over

Auditor's ResponsibilitY
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\ RRGAWANDE&CO.
| /-A I cHARTEREDACCouNTANTs

t Vtr J _ fili*3;,YJl,';,ffieT:#,i,:fl,;il1ffi"-itJi'd,
\ -'-/ E-Mail:-ngawandeandco@yahoo,co,uk&ngawandeandco@hotmail.com

Mobile No 98214 61170, 93214 6l l?0 Tel. No.022 28'76 9653

In our opinion, to the best ofour information and accordins to the exDlanations siven
to us,.the Company have, iu.all material respects.. an atreqgate iitemal fina"ncial
c-ontrols system over tinancial reporting and Such intemal financial controls over
tinancial iepofting were operatins effec'tively as at March 31.2018. based on the
internal cohtrol bver financial -reoorting criteria established bv 'the Comoanv
considering the essential component! of in'iemal conrrol srated in th'e Guidanie Not'e
on Audit -ol' Internal Financial Contro,ls Over Financial Reponing issued by the
Institute ofChartered Accountants of India.

Mumbai
Date :02.05.201 8

For R.R. Gawande & Co.
Chartered Accountants

F.R.N. 123762W

R,R, Gawande
(Proprietor)

MembershipNo. 114553
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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E-Mai l:. ngawandeandco@yahoo.co,uk & rrgawandeandco@hotmai Lcom
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AUDITORS CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members
Hi-Klass Trading and Investment Limited
Mumbai

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Hi_
Klass Trading and Investment Limited f,the CompanyJ, for the year ended 31,,

Yi:"h;^2j19, 3r 
provision of regulation 15 (2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of

lndia (SEBI) (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulati;2015 for
the period lsrApril, 2017 to 3l.rMarcle 2018.

The cornpliance of conditions of Corporate Govemance is the responsibilitv of the
management. Qur examination was limited to procedures and implementation
thereof adopted by the Company for eruuring the compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our in{ormation and according to the explanations
given to us by the Directors and the management, we certify that the Company has-
complied with the conditions of Corporate Govemance as stipulated in the above
men iioned Listing Agreement.

we state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viabilitv of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the manasement has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Mumbai

Date:02.05.2018

i " tl

.:.r, i l:. ,..:':'

For, R. R. Gawande & Co
Chadered Accountants

Ritesh Gawande

.,., (Proprietor)
. FR No 123762W

. . ., 
... .. . Membership No 114553
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lSha 
reholders' funds

| 
(a) Share capital

l(b) Forfited Share

l{c) 
Reserves and surplus

lShare application money pending allotment

I

I 

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade payables

TOTAT

A)>E | 5

Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets

(i) Tangible assets
(ii) Other non-current assets

Current assets
(a) Current investments
(b) lnventories
(c) Trade receivables
(d) Cash and cash equivalents

{e) Shoft-term loans and advances

Statement of significant Accounting policies, Notes to
Accounts

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

15

31,062,000
7,568,500

13,543,7a3

61-8,544

20,062,000

7,568,500
Lr,032,023

885,193

5,554
3,440,000

10,000
L2,544,312

487,307
s,644,497

30,667,758

13,219

72,528,759

L,625,160

250,815

25,729,763

TOTAT

Company Name ; M/s. Hl - KLASS TRADTNG AND TNVTESTMENTS UMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2O1g

As per our Repo4,of evendate attached
ForRRGawande&Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 123762W

For and on behalf of the Board of Direcotrs

Director

lHuESTi{ltlr LTB' -: ,. ;, lr r

R R Gawande

Prioprietor

M No. 114553

Mumbai : 02.05.2018

Director

Ifr{EqFRTTFIED 4#;0.,,
Company Secretary

=
I

For lilK:{SS

IIRETTOR,



company Name : M/s. Ht - KTASS TRADTNG AND TNVTESTMENTS LIMITED

Profit and loss statement for the ended 31"'March 2018

Revenue from operations

Other income

Total Revenue (l + ll)

Expenses:

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-progress
and Stock-in-Trade

Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and a mortization expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax (v - v ll

Tax expense:
(1) Current tax

{2) Earlier Years Wf.
{3) Deferred tax

Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) (Xll-
xn)

Profit ([oss) for the period (Xi + XIV)

Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic

r,702,778

urt 1?q

331,334
7,665

37s,698

1.,122,280

7 ,150,OOO

5,223,2?a

20,270
1clo rn,

5,442,802

580,439

268,678

2,307 ,198

757,500

0.10 0.77

As per our Report of evendate attached
ForRRGawande&Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 123762W

R R Gawande
Prioprietor
rl No. 114553

Mumbai : 02.05.2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Direcotrs

Director

Ma ndeep Kaur

Company Secretary

Director

TRIjE CERTIFIED COPY
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Equity Shares ofRr lO each, fu y paid u,

sharesof Rsroe.ch 
""tr./r"p.id,;(s;.;:,

6,132,100

6,132,7N

3,106,200

61,321,000

61,321,000

31,062,000

5,032,X00

5,032,100

2,406,200

50,321,OOO

50,321,000

20,a62,OO0

Sharerof Rs rOeach, nor iu y pa/d Lp{Rr.5l
)nares of Rs t0 each, nor ru y paid up(Rr.2,5)

Net ProUtl(Ne! Lost rorrh€ curentvear
rranner irom Reseruer



Note 7

Trade Recelvables

Note 8

cash

a. Ealances with banks*

Indtan Oversies Bank A/c. No.7368
s,633,042

11,45s

19,360

231,455

'nepatriation restrictions, jf any, in respectofcash and b;nfi;i;;;;A;

Note 9

to others Unsecured Consider€d



e of Shares 6,900,000

lnterest Income 1,191,276

Note 11

Other income

linterest lncome ('in case of a company other than t
iiinance company)

Dividend Income

Other non-operating income (net of expenses
3ttributabte to such income)

Total

Note 12

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Note 13

Net gain/loss on sale of investments

Changes in inventories of finished goods

Opening Stock-in.Trade 12,528,759 17,751,988

Closing Stock-in-Trade 12,544,312 12,528,759



Note 14

Other expenses

Advertisement

AGM Expenses

Audit Fees

Bank Charges

ROC F"*

4,838 19,304
19,600 10,000

46,000 22,900
1 ,580 2,729

98,500 30,000
l:aLridr gc5, LU)L, N)uL, 65E, N5t, l-ees

lCenerat Expenses

I

Office Expenses

Postage & Tetegrams

Consultancy Charges

Printing & Stationery I
I

Account Writing Churg"t

Total

'l05,422 2't,66?'
27,763 8,788

13,440 8,920
4,500 20,000

24,095 25,000

30,000 30,000
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Cash Flow Slatement for the year 6nded 31 March, 2018
Name ol the ComPanY

nr - r\LAoJ l rlAl/llr\, Al\u ll\vtrD I lvltrl\ | J Lllvll | tru

Forand on behalfoftho Eoard of OlrectorsRRGawande&co,

Mandeep Kaur Director Dlrector

05.2018

n+:r+-l A\
r-', i' i': l-. \. .-/ r,- iJ

Fst F$TiflSS TRACI$IG 8 US.SESTSEfiT LTB,

&{-,-'
DP\,: orRr,croB.

Profil / (Loss) before efraordjnary ilems and lax
lnents tot:

Deprecialion and amortisalion

orofit/ {loss) beiore working @pitalchanges

Adjustnents for linctease) / dectease in operaIng assets:

Trade receivables
sho(1erm loans and advances

;,q'sr|ens tat nuease / {decrcase) tn opetanng habjhties

flow fiom extraordinary items
generated from opemiions

Net income tax (Paid)/ retunds

Net cash flowfrom / (used in)operatlng actlvities {A)

Cash flow hom investlng actlvltles

cash flow from / (used In) lnvestlng activities (B)

. Cash flow from financing activitles

Recelpl torm lssue of Shares
Net cash tlow from / (used jn)financins acllvilies {c}

increase / {decrease) in Cash and cash equlvalents (A+B+C)

and cash equivalents at he beginning ofthe vear
of exchange differences on restatemenl of foreign cufiency Cash and cash

and cash eouivalents atthe end otthe year

5,223,228
,764,668

-5,685,000
1,143,853

The Cash Flow Slatement reflects the combined cash Jlows pertaining to continuing and discounting operations

These earmarked accounl balancesw;th banks can be utilised onlyforthe specillc identified plrposes
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M/s. Hi-klass Trading and Investments Limited,

accrual basis provision is made for all known losses and

:_ A) ACCOUNTING POLICIES :

l. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention and comprywith the applicable Accounting Stindards issued by the Institute of chartereh
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Ac.,2013,,"; ;"i;;
consistently by the company. All incomes & Expenditure having material bearing on thefinancial Statements are recognized on accrual basis.

2. Currenl and non current classification of assets and Iiabilities,

All assets and liabirities have been classified as current or non-current as per tiecompany's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule ni to tt*Companies Act, 2013.

3. Tangible Fixed Assets

a valuation of Fixed Assets:- Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. cost comprises the purchase price and otherdirectly attributable costs of brining the assets to its 

^working 
condition for its intended

use,

b. Depreciation:- Depreciation is provided using writien down value method at the ratesprescribed under Schedule Ii of the Companies 
-Act, 

2013.

4. Revenue reorganization

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flowto the company and the revenue can be reliabiy measured.

Dividend I ncome

Dividend income is recognized on cash basis.

5. Valuation of Stocks:
Stock is valued at cost as certified by Direclors..

l
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6. Expenditure:
Expenses are accounted on
iiabilities.



7. Contingent Liabilities:
llo provision is made for contingent riab ities, which are contingent in nature but iFnaterial, they qe disclosed by way ofnote.

l) NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:
l, Balance under.Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors Loans and Advances payable orreasonable are subject to confirmation.

l: T. fity": of the previous years have been regrouped / rearranged wherever it wasnecessary to do so.

3. Books ofAccounts are mainlained on going concem basis.

PLACE: MUMBAI.

DATE : 02nd May,20lg.

For and on behalfof the Board of Direotors

')
con.Sec'cia:7 Ditector Director

PLACE: MUMBAI.

DATE : 02no May,2018.

For R. R. GAWANDE AND CO,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(R.R.GAWANDE)
PROPRIETOR

MEMBERSHIPNO. I14553.

Tnl-l': cIRrlrir.D e oPY
For 8ttr{s6s IRAqING 6 ll\|vEsTMEttrT LTg'EN\ OIEECTOB,



HI-KLASS TRADING AND INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18

ATTENDENCE SLIP
(TO BE HANDED OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OFTHE MEETING HALL)

I hereby record mlpresence at the 25n Aimual General Meeting of Company to be held at
Office No 15, zfid Floor, plot No 25\ Rehman Building, Veei Nariman Road, Hutatrna
Chowk, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001 .

NAME OF THE ATTENDING MEMBER (IN BLOCK LETTERS)

Name of the Proxy (to be filled in if the proxy attends instead of the Members)

SIGNATURE OF II{E MEMBER/ PROXY

Member's Folio Number

Notes:

No. of Shares held

1. Shareholder/Prory holders are requested to bring the attendance slips with them duly
completed when they come to the meeting and hand them over at the gate after affixing
theh signatures on them.

2. The prory form must be deposited duly stamped at the registered office of the Company
not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.



To,

HI-KLASS TRADING AND INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2OT7-1.8

BOOK-PO,FT,.

If Undelivered Please return to:

Fli-Klass Trading and Investment Limited.,
Office No 15, 2nd Floor, Plot No 24,

Rehman Building, Veer Nariman Road,
Hutatma Chowk, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001


